The May Metro Board Meeting will be held simultaneously in person and online using Zoom. The public is
invited to attend. In consideration of everyone’s time and in respect of those presenting, any online connection
that is deemed to be causing a disruption may be removed from the meeting.
Metro Transit is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.
Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81530837138?pwd=cDRFYkNMWGFHUHdVcHJNbnRoQ3c5Zz09
Meeting ID: 815 3083 7138
Passcode: 431326
One tap mobile
+13462487799,,81530837138# US (Houston)
+16699006833,,81530837138# US (San Jose)
Dial by your location
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
Meeting ID: 815 3083 7138
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kbVKCCuXLN

AGENDA
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
2222 Cuming Street
Omaha, Nebraska, 68102
May 26, 2022
8:30 a.m.
1. Call to Order: Notice of the Regular Meeting was published in the Omaha World Herald on May 22, 2022.
2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings:
a. Regular Meeting: April 28, 2022
3. Administrative Report

(L. Cencic)

4. Administrative Reports:
a. Administration/Human Resources
b. Programs/Operation

(D. Grant)
(I. Maldonado)

5. Resolution – Request Appointment of New Member to Hourly Pension Retirement Committee
(W. Clingman)
6. Resolution – Request Approval of Fiscal Year 2021 Audited Financials

(W. Clingman)

7. Resolution – Request Approval of Revised Operating Policy 33 – Appearances Before the Board
(L. Cencic)
8. Resolution – Request Approval of the 2023 Transportation Improvement Program
9. Board Chair Report
10. Date, Time and Place of Next Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, June 23, 2022, at 8:30 a.m.
Authority’s Administrative Building
11. Adjournment

Tentative Resolutions for Next Board Meeting
None

(J. Rumery)
(A. Haase)

5.

Resolution:
Explanation:

Request Appointment of New Member to Hourly Pension Retirement
Committee
Staff is requesting appointment of one hourly retirement committee member because
of a vacancy created by a staff retirement.
The Metro hourly pension plan requires a 6-member committee which is comprised
of the following individuals:




Two members appointed by the Transport Workers Union of America, Local 223;
one from among the local membership and one from the International Union
Two members appointed by the Metro Board of Directors; one from the Metro
management personnel and one from the Metro Board
Two members from the citizens of Omaha who are businessmen qualified in financial affairs; one is appointed by the Union and one is appointed by the Metro
Board of Directors

Ivan Maldonado would fill the management personnel vacancy the was created with
the retirement of Kelly Shadden.
Recommend Approval
.

6.

Resolution:

Request Approval of Fiscal Year 2021 Audited Financials

Explanation:

Staff is seeking approval of the 2021 audited financial statements. Hamilton
Associates performed the audit and produced the December 31, 2021 Audited
Financial Statements. Representatives from Hamilton Associates reviewed the audit
report with Lauren Cencic, William Clingman and the Finance/Procurement
Committee. A copy of the audit report is included in the Board Packet. Assuming
Finance/Procurement Committee concurrence, recommend approval.

The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
For the year ended December 31, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Board of Directors
The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha
Omaha, Nebraska

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha (the Transit
Authority), as of and for the years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Transit Authority’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Transit Authority as of December 31, 2021, and 2020, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Transit Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Transit Authority’s ability to
continue as a going concern for the period January 1, 2022, through December 31, 2022.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
•
•

•

•

•

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Transit Authority's internal control. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Transit Authority's ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, schedules of changes in net pension liability and related ratios, schedules of
employer contributions, and schedules of investment returns on pages 1-7 and 31-38 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Transit Authority’s basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards

and related notes are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule
of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 27, 2022
on our consideration of the Transit Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Transit Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Council Bluffs, Iowa
April 27, 2022

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
Introduction
This management’s discussion and analysis of the financial performance of The Transit Authority of the
City of Omaha (the “The Transit Authority”) provides an overview of the Transit Authority’s financial activities
for the year ended December 31, 2021, as compared to December 31, 2020. It should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying financial statements of the Transit Authority.
Financial Highlights
The Transit Authority’s net position decreased in 2021 by $4,784,319 or 5.17%, this historically has been
an increase for the Transit Authority when looking back at the percentage increases of 35.61% in 2020 and
11.7% in 2019. The significant increase in 2020 is due to the purchase of ORBT Revenue Vehicles and
construction of ORBT Platforms. The decreased net position amount is a due to the continued increase in
depreciation expense as well as seeing overall ridership still below 2019 levels.
The Transit Authority reported operating losses in 2021 of $40,858,213 as compared to the 2020
of $36,402,058 this is a 12.24% increase or $4,456,155 higher amount than the 2020 operating
loss. The two main contributors to this increase are the continued lower than historical ridership
and continued increase in deprecation due to the prominent level of capital purchases in 2021. The
operating revenues increased by 11.15% or $348,738 from 2020 due to increases in service
contract revenue related to ridership. The Transit Authority receives nonoperating revenues in the
form of property taxes and governmental grants to support operations. Reporting an operating loss
is consistent with the Transit Authority’s operating history since the Transit Authority was formed
and is operated primarily to provide public transportation to the residents of Omaha and the
surrounding area and is subsidized to that end. The Transit Authority levies property taxes to
provide sufficient resources to enable it to serve residents in the metropolitan area.
Total nonoperating revenues net effect decreased by $7,022,662 or 18.76% in 2021 over the 2020 figure,
the primary cause of this decrease in nonoperating revenue is due to the large amount of revenue in 2020
from the FTA CARES Grant that was received by the Transit Authority.
Using This Annual Report
The Transit Authority’s financial statements consist of three statements - a statement of net position; a
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position; and a statement of cash flow. These
statements provide information about the activities of the Transit Authority, including resources held by the
Transit Authority but restricted for specific purposes by creditors, contributors, grantors or enabling
legislation. The Transit Authority is accounted for as a business-type activity and presents its financial
statements on the accrual basis of accounting using the economic resources measurement focus.
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net position
One of the most important questions asked about any of the Transit Authority’s finances is “Is the Transit
Authority as a whole better or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position
and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the
Transit Authority’s resources and its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements
include all restricted and unrestricted assets and all liabilities and deferred inflows and outflows of resources
using the accrual basis of accounting. Using the accrual basis of accounting means that all the current
year’s revenues and expenses are considered regardless of when cash is received or paid.
These two statements report the Transit Authority’s net position and changes in the amount. The Transit
Authority’s total net position, the difference between assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows and outflows of
resources, is one measure of the Transit Authority’s financial health or financial position. Over time,
increases or decreases in the Transit Authority’s net position is an indicator of whether its financial health
is improving or deteriorating. Other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in legislation and regulations,
measures of the quantity and quality of services provided to its passengers, and local economic factors
should also be considered to assess the overall financial health of the Transit Authority.
The Statement of Cash Flows
The Statement of Cash Flows reports cash receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash and cash
equivalents resulting from four defined types of activities. It provides answers to such questions as where
the cash came from, what was cash used for and what was the change in cash and cash equivalents during
the reporting period.

-2-

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
The Transit Authority’s Net Position
The Transit Authority’s net position is the difference between its assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources reported in the Statement of Net Position. The Transit Authority’s net position decreased in 2021
by $4,784,319 or 5.17% when compared to 2020. The increase in the Transit Authority’s Net Position in
2020 was due to the large increase in capital assets or the purchasing of the new ORBT Revenue Vehicles
and construction of new ORBT Canopy Platforms. The net decrease for 2021 is due to the continued
impact of COVID as well as increase depreciation cost. Refer to Table 1.
Table 1: Assets, Liabilities and Net position
Statements of Net Position
2021
Assets
Cash and investments
Other current assets
Capital assets, net
Other noncurrent assets
Total assets
Deferred Outflows Of Resources
Pension related deferred outflows
Liabilities and Net Position
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and vacation payable
Other accrued salaries and related
Accrued expenses
Claims liability
Total current liabilities

$

8,103,311
31,166,228
67,680,250
81,529

$

10,127,745
29,976,262
73,963,095
85,110

$

107,031,318

$

114,152,212

$

4,259,832

$

3,167,362

$

2,272,365
980,278
261,911
354,024
1,540,736
5,409,314

$

$

2,575,737
827,521
661,505
307,898
1,721,510
6,094,171

11,056,551
201,833
11,258,384

$

11,775,725
215,833
11,991,558

$

16,667,698

$

18,085,729

$

6,894,834

$

6,720,908

$

67,387,266
168,908
20,172,444

$

72,438,282
736,045
19,338,610

$

87,728,618

$

92,512,937

$

Noncurrent liabilties
Net pension liability
Other post employment benefits
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred Inflows Of Resources
Pension related deferred inflows
Net Assets
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
Transit Authority continues to capture allowable operating costs and capitalizes these expenditures in the
annual appropriation of the 5307 FTA Formula funds. These funds are being invested while giving the
Transit Authority a greater means of working capital. The 2021 operating expenses had an increase over
what was reported in 2020 as the amount increased by $4,804,893 or 12.16% over 2020, a sizable amount
of the increase is the additional depreciation expense calculated on the new capital assets purchased in
both 2020 and 2021. The Transit Authority is continuing to be more effective in the managing of grant funds
and controlling operating expenses to keep them at a minimum. Refer to Table 2.
Table 2: Operating Results and Changes in Net Assets
Statements of Revenues and Expenses
2021
Operating Revenues
Passenger fares
Service contracts
Other
Total operating revenues
Operating Expenses
Administration of transportation operations
Revenue vehicle movement control
Scheduling of transportation operations
Revenue vehicle operations
Maintenance administration
Servicing revenue vehicles
Maintenance revenue vehicles
Maintenance of other equipment
Ticketing and fare collection
Customer services and promotion
Personnel, legal and insurance
Finance, accounting and data processing
Purchasing and stores
General management
M.A.P.A activities
General and administrative
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

$

1,897,116
1,215,652
363,235

$

1,905,168
841,292
380,805

$

3,476,003

$

3,127,265

$

888,707
1,138,077
208,243
15,775,531
758,612
929,680
3,813,013
1,694,993
99,165
845,939
1,501,900
981,020
232,972
907,547
129,173
844,467
13,585,177

$

765,020
1,194,678
157,934
14,731,153
730,262
1,001,011
3,604,367
1,250,924
70,962
734,019
1,096,445
965,388
188,869
799,955
129,378
516,665
11,592,293

$

44,334,216

$

39,529,323

Operating (loss) income
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Property taxes
Federal operating grants
State operating grants
Other support and revenue
Investment income
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Nonoperating revenues, net
Income (loss) before capital contributions
Capital contributions
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year
Net assets, end of year

(40,858,213)

(36,402,058)

$

20,202,096
6,969,137
2,695,270
500,000
13,354
28,785

$

19,318,842
14,259,971
3,423,814
410,000
17,411
1,266

$

30,408,642

$

37,431,304

$

(10,449,571)
5,665,252
(4,784,319)
92,512,937

$

1,029,246
23,262,028
24,291,274
68,221,663

$
$

-4-

2020

87,728,618

$
$

92,512,937

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
Operating Losses
The first component of the overall change in the Transit Authority’s net position is its operating income or
loss - generally, the difference between net passenger service and other operating revenues and the
expenses incurred to perform those services. In each of the past two years, the Transit Authority has
reported an operating loss. As previously stated, this is consistent with the Transit Authority’s operating
history as the Transit Authority was formed and is operated primarily to provide public transportation to the
residents of Omaha and the surrounding area and is subsidized to that end. The Transit Authority levies
property taxes to provide sufficient resources to enable it to serve residents in the metropolitan area.
The operating loss for 2021 increased compared to 2020 by $4,456,155 or 12.24%. Most of the increased
operating expense is in full impact of the depreciation expense resulting from the new construction of ORBT
assets and ORBT Revenue Vehicles. As you can see from the tables, there is a modest increase in
operating revenues of 11.15% or $348,738 between 2021 and 2020. The 11.15% increase in operating
revenues is a result of increasing service contract revenues. Passenger revenues are still below 2019
levels as Metro continues to experience a reduction in ridership due to COVID-19.
The Transit Authority is a labor intensified industry with employee costs in salaries, wages, and fringe
benefits amounting to many of the total operating expenses in 2020 as well as previous years.
Nonoperating Revenues
Nonoperating revenues consist primarily of property taxes levied by the Transit Authority, federal and state
operating grants, and investment income. Nonoperating revenues decreased in 2021 by $7,022,662 or
18.76% over 2020. The increase of 4.57% in the Property Taxes is consistent with previous years. The
Transit Authority had a large decrease in Federal Operating Grants when compared to 2020. As in 2020
large drawdowns were taken from CARES Grant from FTA, this grant is reimbursable at 100% for all
operating expenses as a COVID-19 relief measure. The Transit Authority still has additional funds to
drawdown from CARES, but this will not occur until the ARP grant is also exhausted.
The Transit Authority’s Cash Flows
The increase in the Transit Authority’s cash flows is due primarily to the decrease of capital purchases in
2021 when compared to 2020. Net cash used in operating activities increased by $2,765,097/ in 2021 or
9.77% as compared to the 2020 amount. The utilization of federal grants continues to provide an increase
in cash and investments giving the Transit Authority better working capital. Emphasis has been placed
on how the Transit Authority has managed its cash to increase working capital. Working capital is the
value of a company’s current assets minus its current liabilities and deferred inflows/outflows of
resources. It is considered a good measure of both a company’s efficiency and its financial health.
Working capital has remained consistent for the last several years. Refer to Table 3
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
Table 3: Statement of Cash Flows
Statements of Cash Flows
2021
Operating Activities
Received from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash used in operating activities:

$

Noncapital Financial Activities
State grants
Federal grants
Property taxes received
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities

2020

3,544,248
(15,167,959)
(19,453,756)
$ (31,077,467)

$

$

$

3,669,001
4,559,695
18,900,032

2,948,072
(12,705,130)
(18,555,312)
$ (28,312,370)

3,291,082
14,285,901
18,588,650

$ 27,128,728

$ 36,165,633

Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of capital assets
Proceeds on sale of capital assets
Other support and revenue received
State capital grants received
Federal capital grants received
Net cash provided by (used in)
capital and related financing activities

$ (8,534,161)
28,785
500,000
9,916,327

$ (28,312,695)
1,266
437,222
1,734,901
21,834,116

$

1,910,951

$

Investing Activities
Interest income received
Net cash provided by investing activities

$
$

13,354
13,354

$
$

17,411
17,411

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

$ (2,024,434)

$

3,565,484

Cash - Beginning of Year
Cash - End of Year
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash

$

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of assets
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Change in receivables
Change in inventory
Change in prepaid and other assets
Change in deferred outflows of resources
Change in accounts payable and prepaid expenses
Change in net pension liability
Change in deferred inflows of resources
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
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(4,305,190)

10,127,745

6,562,261

8,103,311

$ 10,127,745

$ (40,858,213)

$ (36,402,058)

13,585,177
-

11,592,293
13,816

15,843
163,822
(418,390)
(1,092,470)
(1,927,988)
(719,174)
173,926

(193,701)
(478,165)
(10,700)
(2,718,346)
(965,546)
(612,254)
1,462,291

$ (31,077,467)

$ (28,312,370)

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Capital Assets
The Transit Authorities procured a total of $8,534,161 in 2021 capital assets as compared to the 2020
amount of $28,312,695. The significantly higher amount in 2020 is because the Transit Authority purchased
ten new ORBT articulated revenue vehicles, thirteen vans for the paratransit service. There was continued
engineering, construction, and design on the ORBT platforms and canopies, with completion of all but two
in 2020.
Other Economic Factors
A large segment of ridership is comprised of individuals subsidized by state and local agencies.
Government and Social Service agencies’ purchases of bus tickets in 2021 still continue to be lower than
pre-2020 levels as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Transit Authority is always looking at new
ways to attract new riders and increase ridership.
Contacting the Transit Authority's Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Transit Authority's finances and to
show the Transit Authority's accountability for the money it receives. Questions about this report and
requests for additional financial information should be directed to the Transit Authority's Finance Director
or Chief Executive Officer by telephoning (402) 341-7560 or emailing wclingman@ometro.com or
lcencic@ometro.com.
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2021 and 2020
2021

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)
Accounts and grants receivable
Property taxes receivable
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other
Total current assets

2020

$

8,103,311
9,670,255
19,321,896
1,245,383
928,694

$

10,127,745
9,842,910
18,217,424
1,409,205
506,723

$

39,269,539

$

40,104,007

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET (Note 3)

67,680,250

73,963,095

81,529

85,110

$ 107,031,318

$ 114,152,212

$

4,259,832

$

3,167,362

$

2,272,365
980,278
261,911
354,024
1,540,736

$

2,575,737
827,521
661,505
307,898
1,721,510

$

5,409,314

$

6,094,171

$

11,056,551
201,833

$

11,775,725
215,833

Total noncurrent liabilities

$

11,258,384

$

11,991,558

Total liabilities

$

16,667,698

$

18,085,729

$

6,894,834

$

6,720,908

$

67,387,266
168,908
20,172,444

$

72,438,282
736,045
19,338,610

$

87,728,618

$

92,512,937

OTHER ASSETS
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related deferred outflows (Note 5)
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and vacation payable
Other accrued salaries and related
Accrued expenses
Claim liabilities (Note 7)
Total current liabilities
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension liability (Note 5)
Other employee benefits payable (Note 6)

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related deferred inflows (Note 5)
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted (Note 4)
Unrestricted
Total net position

See Notes to Financial Statements
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
2021
OPERATING REVENUES
Passenger fares
Service contracts
Other
Total operating revenues

$

$

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration of transportation operations
Revenue vehicle movement control
Scheduling of transportation operations
Revenue vehicle operations
Maintenance administration
Servicing revenue vehicles
Maintenance of revenue vehicles
Maintenance of other equipment
Ticketing and fare collection
Customer services and promotion
Personnel, legal and insurance
Finance, accounting and data processing
Purchasing and stores
General management
M.A.P.A activities
General and administrative
Depreciation

$

1,897,116
1,215,652
363,235
3,476,003

888,707
1,138,077
208,243
15,775,531
758,612
929,680
3,813,013
1,694,993
99,165
845,939
1,501,900
981,020
232,972
907,547
129,173
844,467
13,585,177

2020
$

$

$

1,905,168
841,292
380,805
3,127,265

765,020
1,194,678
157,934
14,731,153
730,262
1,001,011
3,604,367
1,250,924
70,962
734,019
1,096,445
965,388
188,869
799,955
129,378
516,665
11,592,293

Total operating expenses

$ 44,334,216

$ 39,529,323

Operating (loss) income

$ (40,858,213)

$ (36,402,058)

$ 20,202,096
6,969,137
2,695,270
500,000
13,354
28,785

$ 19,318,842
14,259,971
3,423,814
410,000
17,411
1,266

$ 30,408,642

$ 37,431,304

GAIN (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

$ (10,449,571)

$

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

$

5,665,252

$ 23,262,028

$

(4,784,319)

$ 24,291,274

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Property taxes
Federal operating grants
State operating grants
Other support and revenue
Investment income
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Nonoperating revenues, net

Change in net position
NET POSITION - BEGINNING
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

See Notes to Financial Statements
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1,029,246

92,512,937

68,221,663

$ 87,728,618

$ 92,512,937

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State grants received
Federal grants received
Property taxes received
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities

$

2020

3,544,248
(15,167,959)
(19,453,756)
$ (31,077,467)

2,948,072
(12,705,130)
(18,555,312)
$ (28,312,370)

$

$

3,669,001
4,559,695
18,900,032

$

3,291,082
14,285,901
18,588,650

$ 27,128,728

$ 36,165,633

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets
Proceeds on sale of capital assets
Other support and revenue received
State capital grants received
Federal capital grants received
Net cash provided by (used in)
capital and related financing activities

$ (8,534,161)
28,785
500,000
9,916,327

$ (28,312,695)
1,266
437,222
1,734,901
21,834,116

$

1,910,951

$ (4,305,190)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income received
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

$
$

13,354
13,354

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

$ (2,024,434)

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR

$
$

17,411
17,411

$

3,565,484

10,127,745

6,562,261

CASH - END OF YEAR

$

8,103,311

$ 10,127,745

RECONCILIATION TO BALANCE SHEETS
Cash

$

8,103,311

$ 10,127,745

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of assets
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in receivables
(Increase) Decrease in inventory
(Increase) Decrease in prepaid and other assets
(Increase) Decrease in deferred outflows of resources
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase (Decrease) in net pension liability
Increase (Decrease) in deferred inflows of resources
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOWS INFORMATION
Accounts payable incurred for purchase of property and equipment

See Notes to Financial Statements
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$ (40,858,213)

$ (36,402,058)

13,585,177
-

11,592,293
13,816

15,843
163,822
(418,390)
(1,092,470)
(1,927,988)
(719,174)
173,926

(193,701)
(478,165)
(10,700)
(2,718,346)
(965,546)
(612,254)
1,462,291

$ (31,077,467)

$ (28,312,370)

$

$

(292,984)

1,524,810

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
STATEMENTS OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
Statements of Fiduciary Net Position
Pension Trust Funds
2021

2020

ASSETS
Cash
Contributions receivable
Unsettled trades
Accrued income
Investments
Total assets

$ 1,300,704
80,256
21,157
40,846,759
$ 42,248,876

$

883,870
107,923
70,381
21,807
37,389,688
$ 38,473,669

$ 42,248,876

$ 38,473,669

FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Restricted for pensions

See Notes to Financial Statements
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
2021

2020

Employee contributions
Employer contributions
Total contributions

$ 1,110,776
1,215,846
$ 2,326,622

$ 1,054,074
1,549,286
$ 2,603,360

Investment income (loss)
Net change in fair value of investments
Interest, dividends and other income
Investment expenses
Net investment income (loss)

$ 2,847,446
1,800,761
(62,489)
$ 4,585,718

$ 2,803,157
2,038,241
(59,567)
$ 4,781,831

$ 6,912,340

$ 7,385,191

Benefits paid
Administrative expenses

$ 3,112,408
24,725

$ 2,893,811
20,498

Total deductions

$ 3,137,133

$ 2,914,309

Net increase (decrease in fiduciary net position)

$ 3,775,207

$ 4,470,882

Beginning of the year

$ 38,473,669

$ 34,002,787

End of the year

$ 42,248,876

$ 38,473,669

ADDITIONS

Total additions
DEDUCTIONS

FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

See Notes to Financial Statements
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha (the Transit Authority) operates a timed-transfer system
offering fixed, express/commuter and circulator route services. The Transit Authority serves 100 square
miles or approximately 85% of the City of Omaha. In addition, the Transit Authority offers MOBY,
American with Disabilities Act complementary Para the Transit service. MOBY is an origin-to
destination, curb-to-curb service operation within Omaha's city limits.
Reporting Entity:
The Transit Authority, a public benefit corporation, was created by the City of Omaha, Nebraska, by
Ordinance No. 26335 on May 10, 1972, under statutes of Nebraska known as the Transit Authority
Law. The Transit Authority is an independent political subdivision of the State of Nebraska. As a political
subdivision, it is distinct from, and is not an agency of, the State of Nebraska or any other local
governmental unit. The Transit Authority has the right to eminent domain and the power to enter into
contracts and to purchase equipment. The Transit Authority consists of a five-member board appointed
by the mayor and confirmed by Omaha's City Council and the County Board of Douglas County,
Nebraska. The Transit Authority is solely responsible for financing deficits or the disposition of surplus
funds. The Transit Authority collects revenues, controls disbursements and has title to all assets. The
Transit Authority has and retains full and exclusive jurisdiction and control over all public passenger
transportation systems in the City of Omaha, excluding taxicabs and railroad systems.
The transit service outside of the Omaha city limits is provided by contractual agreement between the
Transit Authority and the respective political jurisdictions and agencies.
Basis of Accounting:
The financial statements of the Transit Authority have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The basic financial statements provide information about the Transit Authority’s business-type and
fiduciary (Pension Trust Funds) activities. Separate statements for business-type and fiduciary, are
presented. The basic financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. On an accrual
basis, revenues from operating activities are recognized in the fiscal year that the operations are
provided; revenue from grants is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have
been satisfied; and revenue from investments is recognized when earned. The Transit Authority is not
subject to federal or state income taxes.
Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses and other changes in net
position during the reporting period. Significant estimates include the assumptions used in computing
the Transit Authority's pension benefit obligation. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – Continued
Fair Value Measurements:
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants on the
measurement date. Fair value should be based on the assumptions market participants would use
when pricing an asset. US GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes investments based
on those assumptions. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active
markets (observable inputs) and the lowest priority to an entity’s assumptions (unobservable inputs).
The Transit Authority groups assets measured at fair value into three levels, based on the markets in
which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair
value. These levels are:
Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets as of
the measurement date.
Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for an asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 – Unobservable inputs for an asset or liability that are used to measure fair value when
observable inputs are not available. These inputs are developed based upon the best information
available in such circumstances.
The categorization of fair value measurements by level of the hierarchy is based upon the lowest
level input that is significant to the overall fair value measurement for a given asset or liability. The
assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair value measurements requires
judgment and considers factors specific to each asset or liability.
In the event that changes in the inputs used in the fair value measurement of an asset or liability
result in a transfer into a different level, such transfers are recognized at the end of the reporting
period.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate fair value for each class of financial
instrument measured at fair value:
Fixed income mutual funds – These include investments in mutual funds holding assets that provide
stability, generate income and diversify market risk.
Common stock mutual funds – This category includes investments in equities in U.S. and
developed markets outside the U.S.
Convertible securities mutual funds – This category includes investments in an index fund which
invests in stocks of companies located in emerging markets around the world.
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – Continued
Fair Value Measurements – Continued:
All of the financial instruments described above and held by The Transit Authority are traded on a
national securities exchange and are valued at the net asset value of the underlying investments. The
underlying investments are valued at the latest quoted market prices.
Cash Equivalents:
The Transit Authority considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to
be cash equivalents. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, cash equivalents consisted primarily of money
market accounts with a bank.
Certificates of Deposit and Investment Income:
Investments in nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are carried at cost. Investment income consists of
interest income.
Accounts, Grants and Property Taxes Receivable:
Accounts receivable consist of amounts due from customers for the Transit services, accrued interest
and various other items. Grants receivable consist of amounts due from the federal and state
government under grant contracts as reimbursement for funds expended in accordance with those
grant agreements. Tax collections receivable consist of uncollected property taxes. The Transit
Authority has evaluated outstanding receivables and determined that no allowance is necessary at
December 31, 2021 and 2020.
Materials and Supplies Inventory:
Materials and supplies are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market. Inventory
generally consists of maintenance parts and supplies for rolling stock and other miscellaneous items.
Capital Assets:
Assets which cost $5,000 or more, and with a useful life of more than one year, are capitalized in the
year they are placed in service. Capital assets are recorded at cost, or if contributed property, at their
fair value at the time of contribution. Costs of maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as
incurred; costs of improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of
the related assets.
The Transit Authority computes depreciation using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:
Building and improvements
Motor coaches
Service cars and other equipment
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3 - 40 years
2 - 12 years
3 - 7 years

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – Continued
Accrued Vacation Pay:
The Transit Authority policies permit union employees to accumulate vacation benefits that may be
realized as paid time off. Under the terms of the Operating Policy, employees of the Transit Authority
are granted vacation varying from one to five weeks based upon length of service. Expense and related
liability for accrued vacation pay is earned in the current year to be used in the following year. There is
no carryover of unused vacation, and any remaining amounts are paid out by the end of the year.
Accrued vacation pay is computed using the regular pay rates in effect at the statement of net position
date plus an additional amount for compensation-related payments such as pension, social security
and Medicare taxes computed using rates in effect at that date.
Administrative employees accrue vacation each pay period. These amounts are prorated ranging from
two to five weeks-based on anniversary date and length of service. Vacation time is paid when used or
paid as a lump sum following termination.
Net Position:
Net position is required to be classified into three components – net investment in capital assets,
restricted, and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows:
Net investment in capital assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and costs to be recovered from future revenues, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt
proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds is not included in
the calculation of net investment in capital assets.
Restricted – This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net position use through
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), contributors, or law or
regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.
Unrestricted – This component of net position consists of net position that do not meet the definition
of "restricted" or "net investment in capital assets." When both restricted and unrestricted resources
are available for use, it is the Transit Authority's policy to use restricted resources first, then
unrestricted resources as they are needed.
Revenue Recognition:
Operating revenues occur from passenger fares, service contracts, rental of property, and sale of
advertising space. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and service, administrative expenses
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as non-operating revenues and expenses. Resources received or recognized as receivable before time
requirements are met, are reported as deferred revenues.
Passenger fares are recorded as revenue at the time the service is provided.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

The Transit Authority recognizes federal and state grant income when eligibility requirements are met.
The Federal Transit Administration ("FTA") and the State of Nebraska provide financial assistance and
distribute grants directly to the Transit Authority for operations and acquisition of property and
equipment. Operating grants made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as grant
receivables and revenues over the entitlement periods, based on qualifying expenditures. Capital
grants for the acquisition of property and equipment (reimbursement type grants) are recorded as grant
receivables when the related grant expenditures are incurred.
1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – Continued
Property Taxes:
The tax levies for all political subdivisions in Douglas County are certified by the county board on or
before October 15. Real estate taxes are due and become an enforceable lien on property on
December 31. The first half of the real estate taxes becomes delinquent on April 1 and the second half
become delinquent on August 1 following the levy date. Personal property taxes are due on December
31 and become delinquent on April 1 and August 1 following the levy date. Delinquent taxes bear 14%
interest.
2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments
Cash and Cash Equivalents of the Business-type Activities:
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government's deposits may not be
returned to it. The Transit Authority's deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with
the provisions of state law. As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Transit Authority’s banks of deposit
and money market balances were $8,475,515 and $9,651,178, respectively. As of December 31, 2021,
and 2020, the amounts were fully insured or collateralized with collateral in the Transit Authority’s name.
State law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal depository insurance; bonds and other
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies or instrumentalities of the state of Nebraska; bonds of
any city, county, school district or special road district of the state of Nebraska; bonds or obligations of
another state, or political subdivision of another state, which are rated within the two highest
classifications of prime by at least one of the standard rating services; or a surety bond having an
aggregate value at least equal to the amount of deposits.
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments – Continued
The carrying values of cash and deposits are included in the balance sheets as follows:
2021
Carrying value:
Deposits
Cash at County Treasurer

$
$

2020

7,508,395
594,916
8,103,311

$

9,095,411
1,032,334
$ 10,127,745

Investment income for the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, consisted of interest income of
$13,354 and $17,411, respectively.
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments of the Fiduciary Activities:
Cash, cash equivalents, and investments are reported in the Fiduciary Funds (Pension Trust Funds)
as follows as of December 31, 2021 and 2020:
2021
Money market funds
Investments, at fair value:
Fixed income securities mutual funds
Common stock mutual funds
Convertible securities mutual funds

2020

$

1,300,704

$

883,870

$

13,455,483
25,367,175
2,024,101
40,846,759

$

14,333,304
21,128,452
1,927,932
37,389,688

$

$

All investments at fair value held by The Transit Authority are classified as level one on the fair value
hierarchy as described in Note 1.
Investment Policy: The overall objective of the pension plans (see Note 5 for a description of the plans)
are to provide benefits to beneficiaries through a carefully planned and executed investment program.
The assets are diversified among index funds to minimize relative volatility and the risk of large losses
within any one asset class, investment type, geographic location, industry or sector distributions, or
maturity date, any or all of which could seriously impair the Plan's ability to achieve funding and longterm investment objectives. Investment objectives are reviewed at least annually in light of long-term
capital market expectations, any significant changes in the characteristics of the Plan or its Participants,
and actuarial funding considerations with regard to the liabilities of the Plan.
The assets of the Plans are invested to maximize returns for the level of risk taken. The Pension Plan
Committee adheres to the theory of capital market pricing, which maintains that varying degrees of
investment risk should be rewarded with compensating returns. Consequently, the Pension Plan
Committee makes allocations and investment decisions based on the premise that prudent risk-taking
is justifiable. Through the use of index funds, the Pension Plan Committee is expressing its desire to
maintain risk exposure equal to that of the market segments included in the asset allocation of the
Plan’s portfolio.
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments – Continued
Asset allocation targets as outlined by the Pension Plan’s investment policies are as follows:
Asset Class

Target

Equity Investments
S&P 500 Index
Mid Cap Index
Small Cap Index
Developed Markets Index
Emerging Markets Index

60.0%
27.0
9.0
9.0
10.0
5.0

Fixed Income Investments (including Cash)
Cash
Short Term Investment Grade
Total Bond Market Index (Investment Grade)

40.0%
2.5
2.0
35.5

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affected the
fair value of the investment. The Pension Plan Committee mitigates exposure to changes in interest
rates by requiring that the assets be invested in accordance with allocation targets as noted above.
Credit Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty
to the investment will not fulfill its obligations. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed
to the magnitude of the investments in a single issuer. The Pension Plan Committee mitigates exposure
to credit risk by requiring that the assets be invested in accordance with allocation targets as noted
above, and by investing in mainly mutual funds.
Foreign Currency Risk: Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely
impact the fair value of an investment. There was no foreign currency risk as of December 31, 2021 or
2020.
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

3. Capital Assets
Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, was:
Balance
1/1/2021
Land
Construction in progress
Total nondepreciable
capital assets

$

Additions

Adjustments
and
Retirements

2,828,335
5,433,838

$

7,443,963

$

(141,631)

$

(8,511,048)

$

2,828,335
4,225,122

8,262,173

$

7,443,963

$

(141,631)

$

(8,511,048)

$

7,053,457

$
(13,585,177)

$

(1,575,458)
(39,745)
(1,615,203)
1,615,203

$

12,900
6,424,705
1,568,675
300,629
204,139
8,511,048
-

$ 48,866,258
55,453,002
18,731,060
6,335,682
13,012,476
$ 142,398,478
(81,771,685)

8,511,048

$ 60,626,793

Buildings and improvements
$ 48,853,358
Motor coaches
50,603,755
Service cars and other equipment
17,202,130
Office furniture and equipment
6,035,053
Fees and studies
12,808,337
Total depreciable assets
$ 135,502,633
Less: accumulated depreciation
(69,801,711)
Total depreciable capital
assets, net
$ 65,700,922

$

$ (13,585,177)

$

Net capital assets

$

$

$ 73,963,095

Balance
1/1/2020
Land
Construction in progress
Total nondepreciable
capital assets

Balance
12/31/2021

Transfers

(6,141,214)

Additions

$

(141,631)

$

$
$

Adjustments
and
Retirements

-

$ 67,680,250

Balance
12/31/2020

Transfers

$

2,828,335
6,530,040

$

26,871,274

$

(76,006)

$

(27,891,470)

$

2,828,335
5,433,838

$

9,358,375

$ 26,871,274

$

(76,006)

$ (27,891,470)

$

8,262,173

Buildings and improvements
$ 40,936,678
Motor coaches
42,859,974
Service cars and other equipment
9,872,495
Office furniture and equipment
5,706,223
Fees and studies
10,342,594
Total depreciable assets
$ 109,717,964
Less: accumulated depreciation
(60,302,403)
Total depreciable capital
assets, net
$ 49,415,561

$

$
(11,592,293)

$

(259,236)
(558,920)
(1,025,688)
(262,957)
(2,106,801)
2,092,985

$

8,175,916
8,302,701
8,355,323
591,787
2,465,743
$ 27,891,470
-

$ 48,853,358
50,603,755
17,202,130
6,035,053
12,808,337
$ 135,502,633
(69,801,711)

$ (11,592,293)

$

(13,816)

$ 27,891,470

$ 65,700,922

Net capital assets

$ 15,278,981

$

(89,822)

$

$ 73,963,095

$ 58,773,936
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

4. Restricted Net Position
The Transit Authority had $168,908 and $736,045 restricted net position at December 31, 2021 and
20, respectively. Restricted funds were purpose restricted for the Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) project.
5. Pension Plans
Defined Benefit Plans:
Plan Description:
The Transit Authority contributes, as a single employer, to a separate pension plan for both its
hourly and salaried employees ("the Plans") administered by a third-party administrator.
Participation is mandatory for all employees. Both plans are defined benefit plans, which provide
retirement, death, termination, and disability benefits. The Transit Authority does not issue a
separate report that includes financial statements and supplementary information for the Plans.
Hourly employees who are covered by a collective bargaining agreement between the Transit
Authority and the Transportation Workers of America become eligible under the Hourly Employees'
Pension Plan ("Hourly Plan") and salaried employees become eligible under the Salaried
Employees' Pension Plan ("Salaried Plan") the first day of the month following completion of 120
days of service. Vesting for employer contributions under both Plans is achieved upon completion
of ten years of service. Employee contributions are fully vested. The Plans were established by the
Board of Directors and the employer reserves the right to amend, suspend or terminate the plans
at any time by action of the Board of Directors.
Current membership is comprised of the following:
Salaried Plan
Active plan members:
Non-vested
Partially vested
Fully vested

15
6
21

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits

47

Inactive plan members entitled to but not
yet receiving benefits

7

Total active and inactive participants

- 21 -

96

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

5. Pension Plans – Continued
Hourly Plan
Active plan members:
Non-vested
Partially vested
Fully vested

70
47
77

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits

196

Inactive plan members entitled to but not
yet receiving benefits

51

Total active and inactive participants

441

Funding Policy:
Salaried Employees' Plan
The Plan requires all salaried participants to contribute 6.50% of their annual salary to the Plan.
The Transit Authority is required to contribute the balance of funds needed as determined from an
actuarial valuation for the Salaried Employees' Plan. The percentage was 9.28% for 2021 and
2020.
Hourly Employees' Plan
The Plan requires all salaried participants to contribute 7.50% of their annual salary to the Plan.
The Transit Authority is required to contribute 7.75% of the hourly participant’s annual salary to the
Plan.
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

5. Pension Plans – Continued
Funded Status and Funding Progress:
Salaried Employees’ Plan
At December 31, 2021, the measurement date, based on a valuation date of January 1, 2021, the
Plan was 86.48% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $11,500,514 and the
actuarial value of assets was $9,945,296 resulting in a net pension liability (NPL) of $1,555,218.
The covered payroll (payroll on which contributions to a pension plan are based) was $3,137,262
and the ratio of the NPL to covered payroll was 49.57%. Expected real rates of return are
determined by subtracting expected inflation from expected rates of return. Expected real rates of
return for each major asset class and asset allocation as of December 31, 2021, are as summarized
in the following table:
Asset Class
US Cash
US Core Fixed Income
US Short Bonds
US Large Caps
US Small Caps
US Mid Caps
Foreign Developed Equity
Emerging Markets Equity

Target Allocation
3%
24%
5%
36%
10%
10%
6%
6%

Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return
-0.26%
1.01%
1.24%
4.94%
6.73%
5.56%
6.27%
8.82%

Hourly Employees’ Plan
At December 31, 2021, the measurement date, based on a valuation date of January 1, 2021, the
Plan was 77.27% funded. The actuarial accrued liability was $41,804,915 and the actuarial value
of assets was $32,303,581 resulting in a net pension liability of $9,501,334. The covered payroll
was $12,376,694 and the ratio of the NPL to covered payroll was 76.77%. Expected real rates of
return are determined by subtracting expected inflation from expected rates of return. Expected
real rates of return for each major asset class and asset allocation as of December 31, 2021, are
as summarized in the following table:
Asset Class
US Cash
US Core Fixed Income
US Short Bonds
US Large Caps
US Small Caps
US Mid Caps
Foreign Developed Equity
Emerging Markets Equity

Target Allocation
3%
24%
5%
36%
10%
10%
6%
6%
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Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return
-0.26%
1.01%
1.24%
4.94%
6.73%
5.56%
6.27%
8.82%

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

5. Pension Plans – Continued
Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation:
The Transit Authority's changes in net pension liability are as follows:
Salary Plan
Salary
Total Pension
Liability
$ 9,635,341

Balances at 12/31/19
Charges for the year:
Service cost
194,007
Interest on total pension liability
644,595
Effect of plan changes
Effect of economic/demographic
gains or losses
(53,540)
611,397
Effect of assumptions changes or in
Benefit payments
(568,882)
Employer contributions
Member contributions
Net investment income
Administrative expenses
Net changes
827,577
Balances at 12/31/20
$ 10,462,918
Charges for the year:
Service cost
238,645
Interest on total pension liability
674,743
Effect of plan changes
2,507
Effect of economic/demographic
gains or losses
490,898
Effect of assumptions changes
or inputs
282,882
Benefit payments
(652,079)
Employer contributions
Member contributions
Net investment income
Administrative expenses
Net changes
1,037,596
Balances at 12/31/21
$ 11,500,514

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position
$ 8,051,883

Net Pension
Liability
$ 1,583,458

-

$

(568,882)
262,748
177,937
1,145,976
(19,905)
997,874
9,049,757

194,007
644,595
(53,540)
611,397
(262,748)
(177,937)
(1,145,976)
19,905
(170,297)
$ 1,413,161

-

238,645
674,743
2,507
490,898

$

(652,079)
275,918
202,495
1,097,373
(28,168)
895,539
9,945,296

282,882
(275,918)
(202,495)
(1,097,373)
28,168
142,057
$ 1,555,218

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability:
2020
2021

86.49%
86.48%

The following represents the net pension liability for the Transit Authority for 2021, calculated using the
discount rate of 6.5%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.5%) than the
current rate:
Current
1% Decrease
Discount Rate
1% Increase
(5.5%)
(6.5%)
(7.5%)
Authority's net pension liability (asset) - 2021 $
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2,832,312

$

1,555,218

$

510,175

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

5. Pension Plans – Continued
Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation-Continued:
The following represents the net pension liability for the Transit Authority for 2020, calculated using the
discount rate of 6.5%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.5%) than the
current rate:
Current
1% Decrease
Discount Rate
1% Increase
(5.5%)
(6.5%)
(7.5%)
Authority's net pension liability (asset) - 2020 $
2,700,907
$ 1,413,161
$
669,438
Hourly Plan
Hourly

Balances at 12/31/19
Charges for the year:
Service cost
Interest on total pension liability
Effect of plan changes
Effect of economic/demographic
gains or losses
Effect of assumptions changes
or inputs
Benefit payments
Employer contributions
Member contributions
Net investment income
Administrative expenses
Net changes
Balances at 12/31/20
Charges for the year:
Service cost
Interest on total pension liability
Effect of plan changes
Effect of economic/demographic
gains or losses
Effect of assumptions changes
or inputs
Benefit payments
Employer contributions
Member contributions
Net investment income
Administrative expenses
Net changes
Balances at 12/31/21

Total Pension
Liability
$ 36,755,425

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position
$ 25,950,904

917,732
2,465,753
-

-

(599,260)
2,571,754
(2,324,928)
3,031,051
$ 39,786,476

(2,324,928)
1,286,538
876,137
3,680,422
(45,161)
3,473,008
$ 29,423,912

1,035,492
2,574,726
9,108

-

(141,309)
1,000,751
(2,460,329)
2,018,439
$ 41,804,915

(2,460,329)
939,928
908,281
3,550,835
(59,046)
2,879,669
$ 32,303,581

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability:
2020
2021

73.95%
77.27%
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Net Pension
Liability
$ 10,804,521
917,732
2,465,753

(599,260)
2,571,754
(1,286,538)
(876,137)
(3,680,422)
45,161
(441,957)
$ 10,362,564
1,035,492
2,574,726
9,108
(141,309)
1,000,751
(939,928)
(908,281)
(3,550,835)
59,046
(861,230)
$ 9,501,334

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

5.

Pension Plans – Continued
Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation-Continued:
The following represents the net pension liability for the Transit Authority for 2020, calculated using the
discount rate of 6.25%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.25%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.25%) than the
current rate:
1% Decrease
(5.25%)
Authority's net pension liability (asset) - 2021 $ 13,963,478

Current
Discount Rate
(6.25%)
$ 9,501,334

1% Increase
(7.25%)
$
5,755,390

The following represents the net pension liability for the Transit Authority for 2020, calculated using the
discount rate of 6.5%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.5%) than the
current rate:
Current
Discount Rate
1% Decrease
1% Increase
(6.5%)
(5.5%)
(7.5%)
Authority's net pension liability (asset) - 2020 $ 14,820,690
$ 10,362,564
$
7,183,717

For the years ending December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Transit Authority recognized pension expense
of ($421,871) and ($319,023), respectively.
The Transit Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:
Salary Plan
2021
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments
Total

$

564,940
717,591

$ 1,282,531
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2020
Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

$

(97,003)
-

(972,681)
$ (1,069,684)

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
$

$

167,082
540,304
707,386

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$

$

(116,866)
(798,463)
(915,329)

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

5. Pension Plans – Continued
Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation-Continued:
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year ended December 31:
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

$

(59,409)
(228,011)
(45,826)
66,532
168,243
311,318

Hourly Plan
2021
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments
Total

$

147,377
2,829,924

$ 2,977,301

2020
Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

$

(751,711)
(1,957,555)

(3,115,884)
$ (5,825,150)

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
$

198,072
2,261,904

$ 2,459,976

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$

(740,160)
(2,550,754)

(2,514,665)
$ (5,805,579)

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation-Continued:
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year ended December 31:
2022
$ (1,000,593)
2023
(1,543,327)
2024
(966,574)
2025
(203,676)
2026
331,115
Thereafter
535,206
The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the January 1, 2021
actuarial valuation using the entry age cost method. The actuarial assumptions included a rate of return
on the investment of present and future assets of 6.25% for the Hourly Plan and Salaried Plan per year
and projected salary increases of 4.00% for each plan. The actuarial value of assets was determined
using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments by
setting such value equal to the expected value, based on the assumed rate of return, plus 25% of the
difference between market and expected values for the Salaried Plan and Hourly Plan. Increases in
the net pension liability are amortized over 22 years with a closed period for the Salaried and Hourly
Plan.
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

5. Pension Plans – Continued
Additional Information:
The Schedule of Pension Funding Progress, presented as RSI following the Notes to the Financial
Statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. The projection
of benefits for the Salary and Hourly Employee Plans for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly
incorporate the potential effects of the limitation of funding percentage on the employer's portion.
6. Other Employee Benefits
The Transit Authority provides a death benefit to all employees ranging from $4,000 to $5,000 based
on the year of retirement. After July 1, 2005 (for bargaining unit employees) and May 2009 for
administrative employees, a retiree may opt to take $4,000 cash at retirement in lieu of the $5,000
death benefit. The liability is the amount owed to employees who are eligible at their retirement date to
receive the benefit. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Transit Authority recorded a liability of
$201,833 and $215,833, respectively. No portion of this liability is considered current as of December
31, 2021 or 2020.
The Transit Authority offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Service Code Section 457. The plan permits employees to defer a portion of their
salary until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. Participation in the plan is
optional.
7. Risk Management
The Transit Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; business interruption, errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses;
natural disasters and employee health and accident benefits. The Transit Authority is self-insured for
workers' compensation risks in Nebraska up to $600,000 per individual, $1,000,000 per occurrence;
property risks up to $100,000 per occurrence; public transportation liability risks up to $500,000 per
occurrence; and employee health claims up to $125,000 per person with an aggregate maximum of
$4,902,235. The self-insurance programs, except for health insurance, are administered through the
Human Relations Department.
Commercial insurance is purchased for coverage above self-insurance limits. Workers' compensation
above self-insured limits is covered by a policy which provides $5,000,000 limits above the Transit
Authority's retention of $600,000 per individual and $1,000,000 per occurrence. Public transportation
above self-insured limits is covered by a policy which provides $5,000,000 limits above the Transit
Authority's retention of $500,000 per occurrence. The Nebraska Political Tort Claims Act limits the
Transit Authority's liability for tort claims to $1,000,000 per individual and $5,000,000 for all individuals
per occurrence. Public official risks continue to be insured through a commercial policy. Settled claims
have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
The Transit Authority funds its self-insurance program on an "incurred loss" basis. Provisions for these
liabilities have been made based upon historical experience. The Transit Authority has internally
designated approximately $2,000,000 of its cash equivalents as a reserve for the Transit liability and
casualty losses.
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

7. Risk Management
The following is a summary of the changes in the estimated claims liability for the year ended December
31:
2021
Balance, January 1
Current year claims and change in estimates
Claim payments
Balance, December 31

$
$

1,721,510
4,705,627
(4,886,401)
1,540,736

2020
$

1,642,824
4,308,426
(4,229,740)
$ 1,721,510

8. Commitments and Contingencies
Government Grants:
The Transit Authority is currently participating in numerous grants from various federally assisted grant
programs that are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Entitlement to these resources
is generally conditional upon compliance with the terms and conditions of grant agreements and
applicable federal regulations, including the expenditure of resources for allowable purposes. At
December 31, 2021 and 2020, in the opinion of management of the Transit Authority, any disallowance
resulting from a federal audit would not be material.
Claims and Litigation:
The Transit Authority is currently involved in various claims and pending legal actions related to matters
arising from the ordinary conduct of business. Management believes all outstanding claims are
substantially covered by insurance policies and the ultimate disposition of the actions will not have a
material effect on the financial statements of the Transit Authority.
Construction and Purchase Commitments
As of December 31, 2021, the Transit Authority had construction contracts in progress with remaining
future commitments totaling $933,344. FTA grant funds have been obtained to cover the bulk of these
commitments.
Current Economic Conditions:
The current economic environment presents governmental agencies with unprecedented
circumstances and challenges, which in some cases have resulted in large declines in the fair value of
investments and other assets, declines in governmental support, grant revenue, tax revenue,
constraints on liquidity and difficulty obtaining financing. The financial statements have been prepared
using values and information currently available to the Transit Authority.
A significant decline in governmental support, grant revenue, tax revenue, etc. could have an adverse
impact on the Transit Authority's future operating results.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

8. Commitments and Contingencies – Continued
Current Economic Conditions – Continued:
In addition, given the volatility of current economic conditions, the values of assets and liabilities
recorded in the financial statements could change rapidly, resulting in material future adjustments in
allowances for accounts receivable and pension obligations that could negatively impact the Transit
Authority's ability to maintain sufficient liquidity.
On March 11, 2020 the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus outbreak to be a
pandemic. Actions taken around the world to help mitigate the spread of the coronavirus include
restrictions on travel, and quarantines in certain areas, and forced closures for certain types of public
places and businesses. The coronavirus and actions taken to mitigate it have had and are expected
to continue to have an adverse impact on the economies and financial markets of many countries,
including the geographical areas in which the Transit Authority operates. While it is unknown how long
these conditions will last and what the complete financial effect will be to the Transit Authority, to date,
the Transit Authority is experiencing disruption in daily activities.
9. Subsequent Events
Subsequent events have been evaluated through April 27, 2022 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Salary Plan
Last 10 Calendar Years, ending December 31
(In Thousands)
2021
Total pension liability
Service cost
Interest on total pension liability
Effect of plan changes
Effect of economic/demographic gains of
member contributions
Effect of assumption changes or inputs
Benefit payments, including refunds of
member contributions
Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability-beginning
Total pension liability-ending (a)
Fiduciary net position
Contributions-employer
Contributions-member
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Administrative expense
Transfer from hourly plan
Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position-beginning
Plan fiduciary net position-ending (b)
Net pension liability (asset)-ending (a) - (b)

$

$

$

$

(652)
1,038
10,463
11,501

(53)
611

$

(569)
828
9,635
10,463

$

$

$

263
178
1,146
(569)
(20)
998
8,052
9,050

$

1,555

$

1,413

86.48%
3,137

86.50%
$

49.57%

This schedule is being built prospectively until it contains ten years of data.
Data for fiscal years 2012 to 2014 are unavailable
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194
645
-

276
203
1,097
(652)
(28)
896
9,050
9,946

$

Net pension liability (asset) as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll

239
675
2
491
283

Fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability
Covered-employee payroll

2020

2,639

53.54%

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Salary Plan
Last 10 Calendar Years, ending December 31
(In Thousands)

2019

$

2018

184
630
-

$

-

$

$

(630)
184
9,451
9,635

$

$

$
$

1,583

59.85%

$

(547)
335
9,116
9,451

$

$

$
$

2,484

2,645

93.92%

175
599
-

$

(464)
186
8,930
9,116

$

$

$
$

1,630

2,401
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$

(474)
465
8,465
8,930

158
550
(25)
-

$

(418)
265
8,200
8,465

$

$

$

235
127
(94)
(418)
(150)
6,454
6,304

$

2,227

$

2,161

75.06%
$

67.88%

154
566
-

211
137
489
(474)
(61)
97
399
6,304
6,703

82.12%
$

2015

219
-

211
136
915
(464)
(62)
47
783
6,703
7,486

73.72%
$

2016

(124)
-

242
148
(344)
(547)
(18)
(519)
7,486
6,967

83.57%
2,645

180
609
93
-

211
154
1,372
(630)
(22)
1,085
6,967
8,052

$

2017

2,312

96.32%

74.47%
$

2,070

104.40%

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
Salary Plan
Last 10 Calendar Years, ending December 31
2021

Actuarially determined contribution

$

Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution

271,466

$

275,918

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

Covered-employee payroll

$ 3,137,262

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

2020

(4,452)

8.79%

233,703

2019

$

262,748
$
$

(29,045)
2,638,799

9.96%

216,026

2018

$

210,798

2017

195,553

$

241,858

$

5,228

$

$

2,645,012

$

7.97%

(46,305)

214,483

2016

$

211,386
$

3,097

191,504

2015

$

211,056
$

(19,552)

193,768

2014

$

234,812
$

(41,044)

2,645,012

$ 2,401,367

$ 2,311,907

$ 2,069,548

9.14%

8.80%

9.13%

11.35%

2013

219,791

218,892
899

$

$

2,185,380

$

10.02%

Valuation date:
Actuarial determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 in the fiscal year in which the contributions are reported.
Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Actuarial cost method
Entry age normal
Amortization method
Level percent, closed period, 21 years
Asset valuation method
Five year non-asymptotic smooting
Inflation
2.50%
Salary increases
4.00%
Investment rate of return
6.25%
Withdrawal rates
Rates that vary by age and services
Retirement rates
Rates that vary by age and services
Mortality
PubG-2010 Mortality with generaltional projection per the
MP-2019 Ultimate Scale

Hourly

Annual money-weighted rate of
return, net of investment expense

12.27%

2020

2019

14.35%

20.09%
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2018

-4.63%

2017

13.68%

224,671

$

251,577

$

Notes to Schedule

2021

$

2012

(26,906)
2,071,861

12.14%

240,394

246,999
$
$

(6,605)
1,905,917

12.96%

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
Salary Plan
Last 10 Calendar Years, ending December 31

2021
Annual money-weighted rate of
return, net of investment expense

12.27%

2020

2019

14.35%

20.09%

This schedule is being built prospectively until it contains ten years of data.
Data for fiscal years 2012 to 2015 are unavailable.
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2018

-4.63%

2017

13.68%

2016

7.50%

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Hourly Plan
Last 10 Calendar Years, ending December 31
(In Thousands)
2021
Total pension liability
Service cost
Interest on total pension liability
Effect of plan changes
Effect of economic/demographic gains or
losses
Effect of assumption changes or inputs
Benefit payments, including refunds of
member contributions
Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability-beginning
Total pension liability-ending (a)
Fiduciary net position
Contributions-employer
Contributions-member
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Administrative expense
Transfer to salary plan
Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position-beginning
Plan fiduciary net position-ending (b)

$

$

$

$

1,035
2,575
9

2020

$

917
2,466
-

(141)
1,001

(599)
2,572

(2,460)
2,019
39,786
41,805

(2,325)
3,031
36,755
39,786

940
908
3,551
(2,460)
(59)
2,880
29,423
32,303

$

$

$

1,287
876
3,680
(2,325)
(45)
3,473
25,950
29,423

9,502

10,363

Fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability

77.27%

73.95%

Covered-employee payroll

12,377

11,605

Net pension liability (asset) as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll

76.77%

89.30%

Net pension liability (asset)-ending (a) - (b)

This schedule is being built prospectively until it contains ten years of data.
Data for fiscal years 2012 to 2014 are unavailable

- 35 -

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Hourly Plan
Last 10 Calendar Years, ending December 31
(In Thousands)
2019

$

2018

846
2,400
-

$

-

$

$

$

(2,397)
849
35,906
36,755

836
781
4,406
(2,397)
(67)
3,559
22,391
25,950

$

$

930
2,366
-

2017

$

(334)
-

90
(4,924)

(2,305)
657
35,249
35,906

(1,857)
(3,419)
38,668
35,249

$

855
798
(1,104)
(2,305)
(51)
(1,807)
24,198
22,391

$

10,805

13,515

70.60%

62.36%

11,485

11,485

94.08%

117.67%

$

1,152
2,120
-

2016

$

1,137
2,032
-

2015

$ 1,158
2,469
-

351
-

$

(975)
-

(1,982)
1,538
37,130
38,668

(1,857)
795
36,335
$ 37,130

$

$

$

905
703
2,934
(1,857)
(56)
(12)
2,617
21,581
24,198

$

706
651
1,529
(1,982)
(47)
(96)
761
20,822
21,583

$

11,051

$

17,085

$ 16,308

55.82%

56.08%

11,497

$ 11,391

148.62%

143.17%

68.65%
$

12,170

$

90.81%
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748
663
(71)
(1,857)
(246)
(763)
21,585
$ 20,822

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
Hourly Plan
Last 10 Calendar Years, ending December 31
2021

Actuarially determined contribution

$ 1,161,981

Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution

939,928

2020

$

1,165,834

2019

$

1,286,538

891,105

2018

$

836,227

835,474

2017

$

855,109

958,333

2016

$

904,824

901,256

2015

$

705,467

847,243

2014

$

748,129

833,212

2013

$

702,245

847,072

2012

$

726,238

895,706

719,065

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

Covered-employee payroll

$ 12,376,694

$ 11,605,482

$ 11,485,056

$ 11,485,056

$ 12,169,930

$ 11,497,480

$ 11,390,621

$ 11,514,912

$ 11,362,603

$ 11,350,348

7.59%

11.09%

7.28%

7.45%

7.43%

6.14%

6.57%

6.10%

6.39%

6.34%

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

222,053

$

(120,704)

$

54,878

$

(19,635)

$

53,509

$

195,789

$

99,114

$

130,967

Notes to Schedule
Valuation date:
Actuarial determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 in the fiscal year in which the contributions are reported.
Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Actuarial cost method
Entry age normal
Amortization method
Level percent, closed period, 21 years
Asset valuation method
Five year non-asymptotic smooting
Inflation
2.50%
Salary increases
4.00%
Investment rate of return
6.25%
Withdrawal rates
Rates that vary by age and services
Retirement rates
Rates that vary by age and services
Mortality
PubG-2010 Mortality with generaltional projection per the
MP-2019 Ultimate Scale
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$

120,834

$

176,641

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
Hourly Plan
Last 10 Calendar Years, ending December 31
2021
Annual money-weighted rate of
return, net of investment expense

12.27%

2020

2019

14.35%

20.09%

This schedule is being built prospectively until it contains ten years of data.
Data for fiscal years 2012 to 2015 are unavailable.

- 38 -

2018

-4.63%

2017

13.68%

2016

7.50%

Supplementary Information

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended December 31, 2021
Federal
CFDA
Number

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title
U.S. Department of Transportation
Direct Program
Federal Transit Cluster
Federal Transit Capital Investment Grants
Federal Transit Formula Grants
Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program
Total Federal Transit Cluster

Pass-Through
Number

20.500
20.507
20.526

Expenditures

$

349,325
7,541,014
5,183,648
$ 13,073,987

Passed-Through
Metropolitan Area Planning Agency
Metropolitan Transportation Planning and
State and Non-Metropolitan Planning
and Research

20.505

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

MAPA-METRO
546-600

$

64,308

$ 13,138,295
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended December 31, 2021

1. Basis of Presentation
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal award
activity of The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha under programs of the federal government for the year
ended December 31, 2021. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha, it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of The Transit
Authority of the City of Omaha.
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures
are recognized following cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement
3. Indirect Cost Rate
The Authority has elected not to charge the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate to its federal award
programs.
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Hamilton Associates, P.C.

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To The Board of Directors
The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha
Omaha, Nebraska
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of The Transit Authority of
the City of Omaha, which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the
related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 27, 2022.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered The Transit Authority of the
City of Omaha’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of The Transit
Authority of the City of Omaha’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha's
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of The Transit Authority
of the City of Omaha’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Council Bluffs, Iowa
April 27, 2022
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Hamilton Associates, P.C.

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors
The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha
Omaha, Nebraska
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha’s major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2021. The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha’s major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of The Transit Authority of the City of
Omaha’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about The Transit
Authority of the City of Omaha’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of The Transit Authority of the City of
Omaha’s compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha complied, in all material respects, with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered The Transit Authority of the City of
Omaha’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of The Transit Authority of the City of
Omaha’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Council Bluffs, Iowa
April 27, 2022
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended December 31, 2021
I.

Summary of Auditor's Results:
Financial Statements:
Type of auditor's report issued:

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified:

No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted:

No

Federal Awards:
Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified:

No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

No

Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Federal Transit Cluster

20.500, 20.507, 20.526

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs:

$

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

750,000
Yes

II. Financial Statement Findings
None reported
III. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards
None reported
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Expenditures
$

13,073,987

7.

Resolution:

Request Approval of Revised Operating Policy 33 – Appearances Before the
Board

Explanation:

Operating Policy 33 addresses appearances before Metro’s Board of Directors. The
policy was last revised and approved by the Board in August 1988. The proposed
revised operating policy was developed in conjunction with the Planning/Policy
Committee. The proposed revisions are compliant with the Open Meetings Law
and provide clarity on the rights of the public and stakeholders when making public
comments at Board meetings. Under the proposed policy, a public comment period
for items not on the agenda would be added to future Board meetings. A copy of
the revised operating policy is being sent under separate cover.
Recommend full Board approval.

8.

Resolution:

Request Approval of the 2023 Transportation Improvement Program

Explanation:

Staff requests approval of the 2023 element of the 2023- 2028 Transportation
Improvement Program (TIP). This amendment is to program funds and create the
2023 Program of Projects (POP).
Staff recommends programming existing Capitalized Operations Apportionment
Funds (5307) in the FY 2023 element of the TIP. Staff is also requesting to program
Staff is recommending approval of the 2023 Program of Projects in the following
manner:
PROJECT

SUPPORT
EQUIPMENT
AND FACILITIES

SOURCE
OF
FUNDS

AMOUNT

Fed:
$1,784,000
5307

Local:
$446,000
Total:
$2,230,000

Fed:
$1,012,000
TRANSIT
ENHANCEMENTS

5307

Local:
$253,000
Total:
$1,265,000

Fed: $798,816
UNIFIED WORK
PROGRAM &
PLANNING

5307

Local:
$199,704
Total: $998,520

DESCRIPTION
Funds will be
used to procure
A&E Services
for projects,
procure software
for finance,
purchase new
office furniture
and procure a
new generator
and associated
switches and
room remodel.
A&E Services
for up to 50 new
shelters and
projects
associated,
procure up to 50
new shelters,
procure signage
for up to 50 new
shelters

Funds
Management
and planning
activities for
2022 and 2023

PROJECT

CAPITALIZED
OPERATIONS

SOURCE
OF
FUNDS

5307

AMOUNT

DESCRIPTION

Fed: $690,880

Partial ADA
service,
Employee
Training and
Project
Management

Local:
$172,720
Total: $863,600
Fed:
$5,600,000

PREVENTATIVE
MAINTENANCE

5307

Local:
$1,400,000
Total:
$7,000,000

Preventative
Maintenance for
both Bus and
Buildings,
Grounds and
Engineering

Board approval will allow the projects to be committed for FY 2023. Projects will
be submitted to MAPA for consideration at the May 2022 MAPA Board Meeting.
Total new local encumbrance of federal funds from these changes will be:
$9,885,696. Total new encumbrance of local funds from these changes will be:
$2,471,424. Total new encumbrance of all funds will be $12,357,120.
Approval will ensure Metro’s compliance with FTA planning requirements.
This item will be reviewed by the procurement committee prior to the Board
Meeting. Assuming committee concurrence, staff requests the Board approve the
Resolution as presented.

PROJECT
PHOENIX

PURPOSE

The Omaha metro area needs reliable, quality public
transportation to grow sustainably and serve the diverse needs
of our residents.

MISSION

Metro connects people, places and opportunities through
quality transit services.

VISION

Metro is a valued transportation choice for all members of our
community and a vital partner in Omaha’s future.

Metro aims to realize this vision by cultivating and investing in:
Collaborative
communication

Well-maintained
equipment & facilities

Collaborative partnerships
to improve our service

Employee
empowerment

Up-to-date technology
& processes

Outstanding rider
communication & experience

Culture of respect &
appreciation

Ongoing training &
safety efforts

Recognition of Metro’s
value to the community

VALUES
Unity: We are a team with a common purpose.
Responsibility: We take pride in our work and are committed to going above and
beyond.
Care: We care about our customers and each other.
Resourcefulness: We are adaptable and driven to overcome challenges.
Learning: We are always training for tomorrow.
Appreciation: We are motivated to provide a quality of life for those we love
through competitive wages and compensation.

VISION:
METRO IS A VALUED TRANSPORTATION
CHOICE FOR ALL MEMBERS OF OUR
COMMUNITY AND A VITAL PARTNER IN
OMAHA’S FUTURE.
SERVICE COLLABORATIONS,
RIDER EXPERIENCE

MAINTENANCE, EQUIPMENT,
AND TRAINING

COMMUNICATION,
CULTURE, AND
CAREERS

Project Phoenix aims to make Metro
a great place to work by creating a
stronger culture and improving the
way we work together

PROJECT
PHOENIX

RECOGNITION
OF METRO’S
VALUE TO THE
COMMUNITY

COLLABORATIVE OUTSTANDING RIDER
PARTNERSHIPS COMMUNICATION AND
EXPERIENCE TO IMPROVE OUR
“THE RIDER COMES
SERVICE
FIRST”
CLEAN,
UP-TO-DATE
FUNCTIONING,
TECHNOLOGY AND
WELL-MAINTAINED PROCESSES TO ENSURE
EQUIPMENT &
QUALITY EQUIPMENT
FACILITIES
AND SERVICE

TRANSPARENT
2-WAY
COLLABORATIVE
COMMUNICATION

EMPLOYEE
EMPOWERMENT
THROUGH CAREER
ADVANCEMENT
AND REWARD

ONGOING
TRAINING &
SAFETY EFFORTS
FOR ALL
DEPARTMENTS

A CULTURE OF
MUTUAL RESPECT,
APPRECIATION, AND
TEAMWORK
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Meeting Minutes – April 28, 2022
MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING
TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OMAHA
2222 Cuming Street
Omaha, Nebraska, 68102
April 28, 2022
MINUTES
The Transit Authority of the City of Omaha Board met in Regular Session on Thursday, April 28, 2022, at 8:30
a.m., in person at the Authority’s Administration Building, 2222 Cuming Street, Omaha, Nebraska 68102, and
virtually due to COVID-19. Notice was given in advance of the meeting by publication in the Omaha World
Herald. For the benefit of the public in attendance, a copy of the Open Meetings Law is posted in the meeting
room and the Agenda is published on the display in the facility lobby. The following persons were in attendance
at the meeting:
Authority Board:
Ms. Amy Haase, Chair (Absent)
Mr. Othello Meadows, Vice Chair (Absent)
Mr. Jay Lund
Mr. Daniel Lawse
Ms. Julia Plucker
Authority Staff:
L. Cencic, CEO/Executive Director
I. Maldonado, Deputy Executive Officer
D. Grant, HR Director
E. Simpson, Legal Director
L. Barritt, Experience & Engagement Director
K. Pendland, IT Director
W. Clingman, Finance Director
D. Kelsey, Operations Director
J. Willoughby, Senior Project Manager
J. Rumery, Grant Administrator
Others Present:
Other Metro staff
Members of the public

Meeting Minutes – April 28, 2022
Agenda Item #1:

Call to order

Mr. Lund called the meeting to order at 8:28 a.m. For the benefit of the public in attendance, a copy of the Open
Meetings Law has been posted in the meeting room and is available online at ometro.com, and the agenda was
published on the display in the facility lobby.

Agenda Item #2:

Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings

Mr. Lund entertained a motion to approve the minutes of the Board Meeting on March 24, 2022.
Motion by Mr. Lawse; Second by Ms. Plucker
ROLL CALL:
UNANIMOUS; MOTION CARRIES.

Agenda Item #3:
(L. Cencic)

Administrative Report

Ms. Cencic informed the Board that Metro has had a positive response overall to the first 3 electric buses. In
March, Metro had 23 news stories, 10 of which were about the electric buses. Metro is seeing interest in them
on social media as well as on traditional media outlets. People are excited about how these new buses are being
integrated into the fleet. Additionally, Metro took one of the new electric buses to the Earthday Omaha event on
Saturday, April 23, 2022. Participants could board the bus, test out the bike rack, and ask questions. Metro
shared a booth with B-Cycle at the event. Metro staff talked with approximately 200 people, not only about the
electric buses but about Metro overall and MetroNEXT.
Ms. Cencic updated the Board that Nebraska Public Transit Week was last week. Staff gave away prizes and
tickets at the transit centers throughout the week. Metro also selected several free-fare periods on the buses.
Ms. Cencic informed the Board that Metro will be celebrating Bus to Ballot on Election Day, May 10, 2022.
Metro plans to offer free fares on that day to help encourage people to get to the poles. The free fares will be
offered on fixed route buses, ORBT, and MOBY.
Ms. Cencic shared with the Board that Metro is preparing for the annual Safety Awards. This will be held on
Wednesday, May 4, 2022, from 9:30 am to 3:00 pm. This is a big celebration at Metro in which Metro staff who
have been accident-free are celebrated. Staff is awarded with certificates and a ceremony to honor those
milestones. A staff luncheon will also be held. Ms. Cencic encouraged the Board members to attend this event if
they are available during that time. The event will take place in a tent that will be set up in the west side parking
lot with games and a buffet.
Lastly, Ms. Cencic informed the Board that several Metro staff members just returned from the MAPA
Heartland 2050 Learning Tour which was in Indianapolis, Indiana. That trip included Ms. Haase, Mr. Schweitz,
and Ms. Cencic. It was a wonderful opportunity to spend time with other decision-makers in Omaha as well as
an opportunity to learn more about Indianapolis. The group explored the bike-ped-transit infrastructure, many of
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their funding programs, and their BRT system. The group also had the opportunity to have lunch with the CEO
of IndyGo which was a great learning experience.
Discussion was had.

Agenda Item #4a:
(D. Grant)

Administrative Reports

In the Month of April, Metro had 24 people start new roles. Of those 24, five were filled with internal
candidates including Sander Scheer who will be serving as our Maintenance Manager. In addition to Sander,
we hired 12 bus operators, three paratransit operators, one mechanic III, two mechanic helpers, a network
security technician, three dispatchers, and an assistant manager of transit operations.
Since the last board meeting, we have created and started advertising for 6 new roles. Those roles are Body
Shop Mechanic, Manager of Communications and Community Relations, Purchasing Specialist, BG&E
Fieldman and (2) Custodians.
In total, we are currently reviewing applicants and or interviewing for 12 unique positions and are currently
finalizing 7 additional roles.
Discussion was had.
Agenda Item #4b:
(I. Maldonado)

Administrative Reports

As always, Metro’s team continues to focus on continuous improvement of operations, customer service, staff
training and development, and safety. It has been one month since Metro has placed the three new electric buses
into service. As with the implementation of any new technology, there is always a learning curve and an evaluation
process. Metro has begun to test the range and reliability of the electric buses on shorter segments during the
morning and afternoon routes. Metro is now operating the electric buses on longer routes throughout the entire
system. Metro is working closely with the bus vendor to address any technical and mechanical issues that have
come up. Overall, they have performed well on routes lasting between six and eight hours, with about 30% of
their charge remaining. We have actually operated them for longer hours as well, as many as ten hours, and they
have maintained their charge.
Mr. Maldonado updated the Board that Metro continues to work with the Transportation Security Administration
(TSA) to help educate staff on the identification and reporting of potential security threats. In preparation for the
College World Series, Metro has conducted two TSA security exercises where suspicious packages were placed
inside buses. Metro held a safety meeting where our team discussed various operational and safety issues, and
ways to eliminate or mitigate safety hazards. The Director of Transit Operations provided formal supervisory and
junior management training from basic transit supervisory skills and accident investigations. Metro has begun
discussions with transit partners of StarTran in Lincoln and DART in Des Moines to leverage regional transit
opportunities and are working together to improve our respective transit supervisory and dispatch training. Part
of this plan is actually to bring more training and consolidate some of our training. We discussed in those meeting
to do some of that training here. This is much needed for Supervisors, Dispatchers, and other personnel.
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Mr. Maldonado informed the Board that on May 22, 2022, Metro will start a new bus operator schedule. The only
change to our fixed route service will be that on Saturdays, Route 18 which currently operates on a 15-minute
frequency will operate every 20 minutes. This change will affect primarily mid-day service. There will be no
changes to this route on weekdays. Metro does not anticipate that the Saturday service changes will be a major
inconvenience to customers.
Mr. Maldonado updated the Board that over this past month, he has participated in various committee meetings
to include the MAPA Equity Learning Capsule, the Congestion Management Committee meeting, meetings with
representatives from the City of Omaha, and a meeting with the College World Series Planning Committee.
Discussion was had.

Agenda Item #5:
Election of Board Officers and Committee Assignments
(J. Lund for O. Meadows)
Annually, the Board of Directors nominates and elects a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and identifies committee
assignments. The Board committees are Finance/Procurement, Planning & Policy, and Operations. No committee
membership shall constitute a quorum.
Mr. Lawse proposed appointments and committee assignments stay as they are currently. Discussion was had.
Motion by Ms. Plucker to keep officers and committees the same as they have been during the past year; Second
by Mr. Lawse
ROLL CALL:
UNANIMOUS; MOTION CARRIES.

Agenda Item #6:
Committee
(W. Clingman)

Request Appointment of New Members to Salaried Pension Retirement

Staff is requesting the appointment of three new committee members to the Salaried Pension Retirement
Committee members because of vacancies created by a staff retirement and external advisor resignation.
The Metro salaried pension plan requires a 5-member committee which is comprised of the following individuals:





2 members of Metro’s management personal appointed by the Board of Directors
1 member of the Metro Board appointed by the Board of Directors
1 member from the citizens of Omaha who is qualified in financial affairs appointed by the Board of Directors
1 member at large from Metro’s salaried personnel who is selected by the other members of the retirement
committee

Staff requests that the Board appoint Kevin Pendland, Ivan Maldonado and John Philo to the Salaried Pension
Committee. Kevin Pendland would fill the management personnel vacancy that was created with the retirement
of Kelly Shadden. Ivan Maldonado would fill the management personnel vacancy created by the resignation of
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Linda Barritt from the committee, and John Philo, CFA would fill the vacancy created by the resignation of the
prior, long-serving, Omaha citizen qualified in financial affairs, J.J. Schenkelberg, CFA.
Discussion was had.
Motion by Mr. Lawse; Second by Ms. Plucker
ROLL CALL:
UNANIMOUS; MOTION CARRIES.

Agenda Item #7:
(E. Schweitz)

Request Approval of MetroNEXT Title VI Service Equity Analysis

In compliance with our Title VI Program's Major Service Change Policy, an Equity Analysis was conducted for
the proposed MetroNEXT projects to be implemented by 2030. The analysis determines whether the proposed
changes have a disparate impact on minority populations or cause a disproportionate burden on low-income
populations.
Disparate Impact Analysis
Findings reveal on a cumulative basis the minority population will benefit more than the non-minority population.
The number of weekly revenue hours was multiplied by the percent of minority population residing in the ¼ mile
area surrounding each route to identify the cumulative effect on minority populations. The cumulative benefit of
the changes to minorities is 48%. The cumulative impact of the changes to non-minorities is 36%.
No disparate impact is identified for the proposed changes.
Disproportionate Burden Analysis
Findings reveal on a cumulative basis the low-income population will benefit more than the non-low-income
population. The number of weekly revenue hours was multiplied by the percent of low-income population
residing in the ¼ mile area surrounding each route to identify the cumulative effect on low-income populations.
The cumulative benefit of the changes to low-income populations is 48%. The cumulative impact of the
changes to non-low-income individuals is 41%.
No disproportionate burden is identified for the proposed changes.
The service equity analysis considers the cumulative changes as outlined in the MetroNEXT plan. Individual
projects or service changes may require additional Title VI analyses if the changes meet the threshold of a major
service change at the time of implementation.
Discussion was had.
Motion by Mr. Lawse; Second by Ms. Plucker
ROLL CALL:
UNANIMOUS; MOTION CARRIES.

Meeting Minutes – April 28, 2022
Agenda Item #8:
(E. Schweitz)

Request Approval of MetroNEXT Plan

After a yearlong planning and public engagement initiative, staff is presenting the MetroNEXT Plan to provide
strategic direction through 2030. Outreach during the pandemic included a variety of virtual and in-person
engagement, with more than 1,000 participants and 1,500 comments contributing to the planning process.
MetroNEXT prioritizes transit projects & initiatives to embody Metro’s mission, vision, and values:
Mission: Metro connects people, places, and opportunities through quality transit services.
Vision: Metro is a valued transportation choice for all members of our community and a vital partner in
Omaha’s future.
Values: Unity · Responsibility · Care · Resourcefulness · Learning · Appreciation
MetroNEXT is an aspirational, achievable vision to address equity in our region, improve & expand
connections, provide an excellent travel experience, promote environmental stewardship, lead responsibly &
collaboratively, and deliver better transit for a more connected region. In pursuit of these goals, the plan has
prioritized the following projects:

Improved signage at all bus stops

A policy allowing Moby clients to ride the bus fare-free

Permanent funding for the K-12 Rides Free program

Coordination of regional vanpooling

50 new bus shelters with real-time arrival displays

Expanded evening & weekend service

Return of most routes to pre-COVID schedules

24th Street transit corridor enhancements

Frequency improvements on routes 3, 4, 13, 15, & 30

Extension of Route 30 to serve McKinley Road

Expansion of service to Eppley Airport

Extension of 92 Express service to Elkhorn

A Fort Street express route

Study of 72nd Street transit corridor enhancements
Implementation of this plan would require operating funds of approximately $52 million per year and would
produce a measurable impact on Metro’s goals.
Low-income and minority neighborhoods are estimated to gain access to 54% more jobs within a 30-minute
commute, and access to essential services near frequent routes would double. Nearly 70,000 people would gain
access to frequent service, including 37,000 members of zero-car households. These new investments are
projected to attract new ridership, replacing 1.4 million vehicle miles traveled by cars on our roadways and
reducing more than 3,700 metric tons of greenhouse gases each year. More information, including the full
MetroNEXT plan, is available at ometro.com/MetroNEXT.
Upon approval, Metro staff will work to identify additional funding sources and pursue implementation of these
projects in phases building to 2030.
Discussion was had.
Motion by Ms. Plucker; Second by Mr. Lawse

Meeting Minutes – April 28, 2022
ROLL CALL:
UNANIMOUS; MOTION CARRIES.

Agenda Item #9:
Board Chair Report
(J. Lund for A. Haase)
Mr. Lund shared with the Board that the Operations Committee has already shared all of the successes from the
past month regarding HR and other things. Mr. Lawse stated that the excitement around the electric buses and
thank you to the staff who is adapting and adjusting and learning new systems for mechanics to keep the buses
in good repair, learning new electrical systems. I know this is all new and it sounds like with your attention to
detail and tracking, we are getting a lot of great information and feedback about what’s working and what we
might want to tweak because in the world where we are seeing things going, we will have many more electric
buses in the fleet in the coming years. This is a good pilot to test out what is capable, what’s possible, and how
does it work within the system. Thank you to the staff for that.
Ms. Cencic shared that Metro’s financial audit is still delayed due to staffing issues on the part of the auditing
firm. Originally the NTD report was due to the federal government by the end of April, but Metro has an
extension to the end of May. Metro will be sharing that with the Finance/Procurement Committee and with the
Board as soon as it is available.
Mr. Lawse reported that the Planning & Policy Committee discussed a detailed walkthrough of the MetroNEXT
plan that was presented by Mr. Schweitz earlier in this meeting. At this time, there is nothing additional to add
from Planning & Policy. Ms. Cencic shared that the Planning & Policy Committee is also working on updating
Metro’s Operating Policy 33 which is the public participation policy at Board meetings. It is tentatively
expected to be on the Board agenda for next month.

Agenda Item #10:

Date, Time and Place of Next Board Meeting

Thursday, May 26, 2022, at 8:30 a.m. to be held at Metro Transit Authority’s Administrative Building.

Agenda Item #11:

Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was entertained to adjourn the meeting at
9:00 a.m.
Motion by Ms. Plucker; Second by Mr. Lawse
ROLL CALL:
UNANIMOUS; MOTION CARRIES.

Meeting Minutes – April 28, 2022
____________________________________
Ms. Amy Haase – Chair

____________________________________
Recording Secretary

May

Recruiting Report

All
Departments

May
Hires

Proj. Remaining
Need

All Roles

Recruiting Activity Notes

14

25

14 people started new roles at Metro in the Month of May. Metro also
posted 3 additional hiring needs: Body Shop Mechanic, Tire Specialist, and
Inventory Specialist

Bus Operators - Omaha

5

0

Five Bus Operators completed pre-employment screens and started in the
month of May.

Paratransit Operators

2

3

Two Paratransit Operators completed pre-employment screens and started
this month.

Mechanic III

0

4

Currently reviewing and interviewing candidates.

Mechanic Helper

2

3

Two Mechanic Helpers completed pre-employment screens and started
this month.

Body Shop Mechanic

0

1

Currently reviewing and interviewing several candidates.

BG&E

Fieldman

1

1

One Fieldman was hired to start in May.

Custodial

Custodian

2

2

Two Custodians completed pre-employment screens and will be starting in
May.

Operations

Maintenance

May

Recruiting Report
Role

April
Hires

Proj. Remaining
Need

Admin Staff

2

12

1

0

0

0

➥ Mngr of Communications &
Community Relations

➥Maintenance Manager

Recruiting Activity Notes

External candidate excepted the role and will start in June.

➥ Maintenance Supervisor

2

Currently reviewing and interviewing candidates.

Inventory Specialist

1

Currently reviewing candidates and will start interviewing soon.

1

0

Fawad Yusufi started in the month of may

➥ Network Security Technician

0

0

➥ Dispatcher

0

0

➥ Tire Specialist

0

1

Currently reviewing and interviewing candidates.

1

Currently reviewing candidates and will start interviewing soon.

7

These job descriptions are currently being drafted.

➥ Manager of Procurement and
Contracts

➥ Sr. Manager of Planning &
Scheduling
Pending Job Openings

Jobs are posted internally, on Indeed, NEworks, LinkedIn, CareerLink, print ads, social media, www.ometro.com, exterior bus signage, and hood signs.

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT
Grant Administration Update – Jeffrey Rumery:

Grant No.

Description

Grant Total

Funding
Remaining Date
05/19/2022

Completed Projects

Rolling stock
procurement, Westroads
and Benson Park Transit
Centers; split-funded
NOTC upgrade.

NE-03-0041

Construct Transit
Center(s); Buses

$6,646,607

$226,605

NE-04-0044

Creighton TC

$2,993,130

$1,263,288

Phase I of Transit Mall
complete. Phase II
substantially complete.

$2,120,700

Construction is
complete. Bus project is
complete.

NE-95X004/NE35-X005

BRT ALLOCATION
GRANT

$7,443,889

Status of ongoing and completed
projects

Transit Center enhancements are in
the process of being installed and
finished.

Construction on 8th & Farnam station
has begun.

Grant No.

Description

Grant Total

Funding
Remaining Date
05/19/2022

Completed Projects

Status of ongoing and completed
projects

$0

New Buses have arrived
and are in service, Fleet
& Fuel has been project
is in process for software
and pumps.

Buses have arrived and are in
service. Portions of software is in
process; hardware will be procured
through other means. Grant will close
this quarter

NE-34-X006

FLEET & FUEL MGT
GRANT

NE-34-X007

FARE SYSTEM
UPGRADE

$1,775,936

$483,955

NE-34-X008

DIGITIAL DISPLAYS

$2,265,610

$0

Displays have arrived
and are in installed.

Task Order 10 to SRF
for preliminary design
and engineering has
been signed.

$4,709,375

NE-34-X009

FACILITY
SUSTAINABILITY

$6,685,000

$6,588,136

NE-90-X118

CARES ACT GRANT

$24,162,926

$10,132,871

NE-90-X117

2019 5307
OPERATING GRANT

$6,800,200

$271,479

Contract finalized and
vehicles install
UMO Rollout continues.
completed. Station Install
complete.

Grant will close this quarter.

Final IFB for the projects is in process
of completion. Replace Employee
Parking, add solar, upgrade
electrical, expand CNG footprint,
replace skylights. Work Orders have
been issued for design
Will be used to offset Metro’s
Driver barrier installed on expenses in response to the COVIDmajority of buses, New
19 Emergency. Funds will support
Flyer Barriers on order.
adequate response to, and recovery
from, COVID-19 Emergency.
Vans project has been
completed; small
projects have started.
Small projects remaining to close
New truck has been
before the grant is closed.
purchased for
Maintenance, other
capitalized operations

Grant No.

NE-90-X120

NE-34-X010

Description

2020 5307
OPERATING GRANT

2020 Lo No Grant

Grant Total

$8,664,737

$2,369,500

Funding
Remaining Date
05/19/2022

Completed Projects

Status of ongoing and completed
projects

$4,414,915

Furniture for New offices
has been procured,

Grant will allow for various projects
such as new shelters, shop
equipment and support vehicles. New
MOBY Vans are being speced to
procure

$178,440

3 all Electric New Flyer
40’ Buses have arrived.
Charging stations have
been installed and are
operating. Buses are
going through postdelivery inspections.

Tools have been arriving on a
piecemeal basis and training has
been taking place with technicians.

MetroNext is in process,
various projects for BGE
& Maintenance are in
various stages of
procurement.

Grant will allow for various projects
around Metro to be Completed such
as new radios, signage computer
hardware and software, and shop
tools and equipment. Will also fund
Planning and ADA services

NE-90-X125

2021 Metro 5307
Grant
Capital/Planning/ADA

$3,186,300

$2,175,205

NE-90-X127

2015 ARP GRANT

$14,170,473

$13,531,742

Will be used for Metro’s response to
the ongoing COVID-19 Emergency

SOCIAL MEDIA SUMMARY
4.1.22 - 4.30.22

Facebook: Metro Transit Omaha
Posts: 14
Reach: 7,794
Reactions: 237
Comments: 16
Shares: 46
10 new page likes | 0.48% increase

Twitter: @rideORBT
Tweets: 42
Impressions: 13,800
Avg. 1,874 impressions/post for the year
Mentions: 25
Profile visits: 2,533
12 new followers | 1.15% increase

Instagram: @metrotransitoma
Posts: 3
Likes: 53
Avg. 26.7 likes/post for the year
Comments: 2
10 new followers | 0.77% increase

COMMUNICATIONS

1

EARNED MEDIA SUMMARY

20 stories 9 outlets

Telemundo - MetroNEXT

4.1.22 - 4.30.22

KETV - MetroNEXT

WOWT - Masks

KPTM - MetroNEXT

Nebraska Sunrise News - Electric Buses

Omaha World-Herald - MetroNEXT

KETV - Masks

OUTREACH
Earth Month Roundtable
April 6

Metro participated in the Earth Month Roundtable
hosted by MCC, UNO, Creighton, and Nebraska
Medicine.
The focus of the presentations was recent
sustainability projects from a variety of local
organizations, as well as what individuals can do to
be more environmentally friendly.

Nebraska Public Transit Week
April 17-23
Staff celebrated Nebraska Public Transit Week
by hosting giveaways at all of the transit centers
throughout the week and providing Bike + Ride
training at the Metro office and Earth Day.
To end the week, Metro was out with one of
its electric buses at Earth Day Omaha to talk
to hundreds of residents about sustainable
transportation in Omaha.

Photo from The Reader

COMMUNICATIONS

2

MONTHLY SERVICE INTERRUPTIONS
400

REVENUE HOURS NOT OPERATED

350

300

277
5%

250

200

197
5%

213

200
5%

4%

166
6%

150

94%
100

93%

92%

396*

178

47%

1%

Other

267
Accident

5%

175
6%

16%

135

129

8%
90%

9%
93%

90%

74
23%

83%

50

* An additional 393 service hours
were canceled due to snow, but have
been omitted for chart legibility

REVENUE HOURS NOT OPERATED BY TYPE

25%

66%

No Bus
Available

7%

55

75%

90%
86%

72%

MAY 2021

JUN 2021

JUL 2021

AUG 2021

SEP 2021

OCT 2021

NOV 2021

DEC 2021

Mechanical

No Operator

0
APR 2021

Weather

JAN 2022

FEB 2022

MAR 2022

APR 2022

Percent of Total Revenue Hours
100%

0.8%

0.9%

0.8%

1.2%

0.6%

1.0%

0.3%

0.9%

3.6%

1.3%

0.3%

0.6%

0.8%

99.2%

99.1%

99.2%

98.8%

99.4%

99.0%

99.7%

99.1%
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99.4%

99.2%

APR 2021
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JUL 2021
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NOV 2021

DEC 2021

JAN 2022

FEB 2022

MAR 2022

APR 2022
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Revenue
Hours Not
Operated
Revenue
Hours
Operated

April 2022
Fixed Route Registered Customer Service Concerns by Category
Positive
0

Driver

General

Lost & Found

Office Staff

OTP

Routing

Ticket

Vehicle

Other

10

20

30

Neutral

Negative
40

50

60

70

80

COVID-19 Impact on Monthly Ridership - Average by Day Type
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6,667

2,705

2,409
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Metro Transit
Operations Report
April 2022

Current Month

2022 2021 Variance Year to Date

Service

YTD
2022

YTD
YTD
2021 Variance

84620
1166371

90969
1270989

-6.98%
-8.23%

226
374
5161
3350

244
373
5209
3350

-7.38%
0.43%
-0.92%

107
10901

162
7846

-33.95%
38.94%

21537
12431
1.73
138176
0.1559
0
21537

20869
12195
1.71
133842
0.1559
0
20869

3.20%
1.94%
1.24%
3.24%
-0.04%
0.00%
3.20%

Service

Service Hours
Service Miles

21313
293813

23494
328561

-9.28%
-10.58%

Service Hours
Service Miles

54
395
5441
3350

65
361
5055
3350

-16.92%
9.20%
7.64%

Interruptions

32
9182

39
8425

-17.95%
8.99%

6792
3673
1.85
44205
0.1536
0
6792

6124
3437
1.78
39870
0.1536
0
6124

10.91%
6.87%
3.78%
10.87%
0.03%
0.00%
10.91%

Interruptions
Hours Between Interuptions
Miles Between Interuptions
Target Miles

Road Calls
Miles Between Road Calls

Hours Between Interuptions
Miles Between Interuptions
Target Miles

Road Calls
Miles Between Road Calls

Paratransit
Total Van Trips
Passenger Hours
Trips per Hour
Passenger Miles
Trips per Mile
Taxi Trips
Total Trips - Van & Taxi

Total Van Trips
Passenger Hours
Trips per Hour
Passenger Miles
Trips per Mile
Taxi Trips
Total Trips - Van & Taxi

Hours Between Service Interruptions June 2022 & 2022
400

395

380
361

360
340
2022

2021

Hours Between
Service
Interruptions -…
- Target is
Greater Than
250 Hours

YTD Hours Between Service Interruptions 2022 & 2021
375
374

5441

5400
5200

5055

5000
4800
2022

2021

Miles Between
Service
Interruptions
- Target is
Greater Than
3350 Miles

373

373
372
2022

Miles Between Service Interruptions June 2022 & 2021
5600

YTD Hours Between
Service
Interruptions -…

374

- Target is
Greater Than
250 Hours

2021

YTD Miles Between Service Interruptions 2022 & 2021
5209

5220
5200
5180
5160

5161

YTD Miles
Between Service
Interruptions
- Target is
Greater Than
3350 Miles

5140
5120
2022

2021

Miles Between Road Calls
June - 2022 & 2021
9400
9200
9000
8800
8600
8400
8200
8000

9182

Miles Between
Road Calls
- Target is
Greater Than
10775 Miles

8425

2022

YTD Miles Between Road Calls
2022 & 2021
12000
10000
6000
2000
0
2022

21600

21537

21400
Paratransit Van
Trips

6124

21200
21000

20869

YTD Paratransit
Van Trips

20800
20600
20400
2022

2021

1

0.8

0.8
Taxi Trips

0.6

2021

YTD Taxi Trips - 2022 & 2021

1

0.4

YTD Taxi Trips

0.6
0.4

0

0

2022

2021

0.2
0

Paratransit Van & Taxi Trips June - 2022
& 2021
7000

2021

YTD Paratransit Van Trips - 2022 & 2021

Taxi Trips June - 2022 & 2021

0

YTD Miles
Between Road
Calls
- Target is
Greater Than
10775 Miles

4000

2021

6792

2022

0.2

7846

8000

Paratransit Van Trips June - 2022 & 2021
7000
6800
6600
6400
6200
6000
5800
5600

10901

-

6792

6500

0

0

2022

2021

YTD Paratransit Van & Taxi Trips - 2022 &
2021
22000

6124

6000

Paratransit Van &
Taxi Trips

21500

21537
20869

21000

5500
2022

2021

YTD Paratransit
Van & Taxi Trips

20500
2022

2021

Service Interuptions Detail
Type
Accident
Unsanitary Bus
Delayed Out Operator
Bus Operator Family Emergency
Drunk on Bus - Police Called
Passenger Emergency
Weather
Mechanical
Unknown
Vandalism on Bus
Heavy Traffic
No Bus Available
Total

Apr-21 Apr-22
2021
2022
1
2
0
0
49
42
0
1
1
0
1
0
0
0
12
8
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
65
54

Difference
1
0
-7
1
-1
-1
0
-4
-1
0
0
1
-11

2021
YTD
7
1
97
35
1
1
0
83
1
0
0
18
244

2022
YTD
7
3
158
2
0
0
0
48
0
0
0
8
226

Difference
0
2
61
-33
-1
-1
0
-35
-1
0
0
-10
-18

0
1
0
0
1
-3
0
-2
1
0
-1
0
0
-1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
1
-1
0
-1
-4

0
4
6
0
1
23
0
5
4
3
13
1
1
1
0
0
3
0
1
2
0
0
0
1
6
2
9
86

3
11
5
0
3
53
1
6
11
4
19
1
3
6
0
7
12
3
1
11
1
0
5
6
14
8
26
220

-3
-7
1
0
-2
-30
-1
-1
-7
-1
-6
0
-2
-5
0
-7
-9
-3
0
-9
-1
0
-5
-5
-8
-6
-17
134

Mechanical Reasons
Air Conditioner
Air pressure went down
Brake Problem
Broken Belt
Bus Body Problem
Bus shut down
Delayed by Train
Door Problem
Electrical Problem
Farebox
Leaking Fluid
Leaking fuel
Lift malfunction
Light problem
Low water
Mirror Broke
No power
Power Steering Problem
Oil Pressure
Overheated
Radiator Leak
Seat Problem
Starting problem
Suspension problem
Tire problem
Transmission malfunction
Unknown Mechanical
Total

0
0
0
0
0
5
0
2
0
0
1
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
2
12

0
1
0
0
1
2
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
1
0
0
1
8

Service Interuptions
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Hours Between Interuptions
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30000
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April 2022
Registered Customer Service Concerns by Category
Total Calls
Bus
MOBY

12928
7781
5147

Calls by Category
Driver
General
Lost and Found
Office Staff
Other
OTP
Routing
Ticket
Vehicle
Total
Percentage

Total Positive Neutral Negative
73
1
14
58
12
0
10
2
53
0
46
7
4
0
1
3
13
0
6
7
0
0
0
0
14
0
1
13
11
0
7
4
3
0
0
3
183
100%

1

85

97

.5% 46.44%

53.00%

Percentage
39.89%
6.55%
28.96%
2.18%
7.10%
0.00%
7.65%
6.01%
1.63%
100.00%

April 2022 – On-Time Performance – 79.2%

